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Polk keeps watchful eye on
pendmg elder abuse cases

By GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier

PRESCOTT — Sheila Polk made elder '1busc .

one of the central issues of her campaign.

- And while she can’t comment on any particu--

Jar case, such as Mendenhall vs. Munn, a civil
elder abuse case that starts this week in Yavapai
County Superior Court, the Yavapai County Attor-
ney is keeping her eyes on a number of actlons in
the legal system on this topic. '

Polk, a deputy county attorney whom voters
elected in November, discussed elder abuse with

- avariety of organizations in the past year.

~ Her object was to educate and caution both
- seniors and the agencies that serve them about
what elder abuse is, how it can oceur, and how

to preventit.
Polk used the example of one case she pros-

‘ecuted, State vs. Haywood and Light, as an exam- |

ple of how, in that case, young people befriended
and took advantage of a senior. They moved into
her home and cleared out her bank accounts.
After explaining how this happened, Polk
shawed how investigators followed a trail of bank
account balances, phone calls, deterioration of

the senior's home and relationships, adult pro-

tective service red flags, and other signs to come
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to an mchctmmt and Iater convmtlons for the

crime of elder abuse.
. “Most often, the abuser is not a stranger to thc
setiior,” Polk said. “It's a person the senior knows,

a relative or friend. And most often, the victimis

physwally disabled.”

She said criminal prosecutlon of elder abuse
is a difficult and time-consuming task for local

law-enforcement agencies.

If that weren't enough of a challenge she

believes the number of cases in Yavapai County

is on the rise. Thus, one of her first actions was

to appoint one professional in her office as the
contact person for law enforcement people to
work with on elder abuse.

Then she met with a variety of agencies and

officials who might be the first observers of a

potential elder abuse situation.
Later this yeay, if the Board of Supervisors

“approves the position, Polk will add an investiga-

tor in the County Attorney’s office to work with

the various police offices on crimes agambt the -
- elderly. :

If you have a concern that you, or someone
you know might be a victim of elder abuse,
contact the Yavapai County Attorney’s Office at
771-3344.



Elder abuse trial
starts Wednesday

By GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier
PRESCOTT -— If you believe
him, Ray Mendenhall is a
93-year-old Chino Valley vic-
tim whose granddaughter and
her husband asked him to come
live with them inlate 1996 and
over the course of three years,
abused him and coerced him to
turn over more than $600,000
in retirement assets to them.
‘Believe Cynthia ahd Kirk
‘Munn, Mendenhall’s grand-
: daughter and her husband,

however, and Mendenhall is an
elderly relative whose interests
the Munns had at heart when
they invited him to live with
them in Chino Valley in late
1996 — and after offering them
many wonderful gifts, Menden-
hall turned on them and sued
them.

Starting Wednesday, a jury
will have to listen to the wit-
nesses, view the evidence, and

~decide who will prevail in the
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civil suit in Yavapai County .

Superior Court. ;
Mendenhall, through his

attorney, Chris Jensen and his

firm, charges elder abuse,

breach of fiduciary respon-

sibility, conversion and inflic-
tion of emotional abuse against
Cynthia and Kirk Munn, with
assault and battery claims
against Kirk Munn.

The Munns, represented by
Mark Goodman and the Good-
man law firm, deny the charges -
and say the elderly man gave
them nice gifts, then had a
change of heart after a falling
out with them and started a
suit.

Ray Mendenhall and his Wife,
Deseret, moved to Chino Valley
in December 1996. . :

Both Mendenhall and the
Munns agree it was the ‘best
decision they could make at the
time. -

The task of caring for his ter-
minally ill wife was just too
much for Mendenhall alone in
California, and the Munns'
Chino Valley home fit their
‘needs.

Se¢ ELDER, page 94

At first, the Mendenhalls |
lived in an Airstream trailer on |
the Munns' property. When the '
heater failed, the seniors moved
into the Munns’ home. Men-
denhall admits he offered to pay
for the reasonable cost of hous-
ing, but the Munns refused hlS
offer.

That’s where two sides’ sto-
ries begin to diverge. Menden-
hall, through his attorney Jen-

~ sen, says the Munns had him go

to Prescott and make Cynthia
Munn successor and beneficia-
ry of the Mendenhall trust, and
give her power of attorney over |
his financial affairs. 3

The Munns, however, say
they merely agreed to the Men-
denhalls” wishes and trans-
ported them to the,attorneys’
office. v

Deseret Mendenhall took a
turn for the worse on April
2, 1997, and: went to Yavapai
Regional Medical Center with
swollen legs. She died several
days later, at the Munns’ home,
on April 7. ,

On her death, Ray Menden-
hall went to his safe, in which
he kept as much as $85,000, to
take money out to bury his wife.
He found the money missing.

He and Cynthia Munn both
had keys to the safe, but Men-
denhall usually kept his key
unguarded, on the hedd of the
bed. And a number of people
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had been in the houqe the

Munns say.

Mendenhall alleges that Cyn-
thia or Kirk Munn took the
money. But the Munns say they
believed it could have been Kim
Savory, who had been in the

house.

Cynthia Munn, a mumc1pql
court employee, privately asked

‘Chino Valley Police Chief Pat

Huntsman her advice, since
Savory’s boyfriend, Roy Abbott,
is the Chino . Valley magns— '
trate.

Huntsman said in a deposi-
tion that she told Cynthia Munn
therelationship would be a con-
flict, and that she should report
it to another agency as soon as
possible.

However, the Munns did not
report the theft to a police agen- -
cy, but instead hired a private

fingerprint expert to -examine
the crime scene.

When the expert didn't turn
up any usable evidence, they
didn’'t pursue the issue with
another -agency. In the case
documents, Mendenhall alleges
that this was just one time that
the Munns breached their fidu-
ciary responsibility.

Either, the Munns were cov-
ering up their own theft of his
cash, or they didn’t pursue an



official investigation that might
have turned up the thief, Men-
denhall claims.

Over the next two and a

half years, the Munns paid off
their mortgage, added onto their
home, bought commercial
property, built and opened the
Chino Valley “Grease Gun” auto
shop with the intent to fran-
~chise the shops, had college
funds set up for their daugh-
ters, and received joint title to
a vehicle and a vacation home
in Utah.

The Munns say the property
and improvements were won-
derful gifts from Mendenhall
to them and his great-grand-
daughters. .

They claim he told them he
saw the money as “already
theirs,” and he wanted to make
these decisions while he was

living and avoid estate taxes .

later. '
Things started turning ugly

in June 1999, when the Munns

went to Lake Havasu for the
weekend. Mendenhall let the
dog, which had been sprayed by
a skunk, in the house, and the
Munns came home and were
angry with him.

After staying up most of the
night to clean the carpets and
furniture of the sterich, Munn

became angry when Menden-
hall parked a car half in and
half out of the driveway after
driving to breakfast.

Munn says he asked for the
keys to move the car and.

Mendénhall started velling and

throwing his arms up in the air

and lost his balance and fell.

-Mendenhall remembers the

incident differently. He says Kirk
Munn tried to wrest the keys

from him, knocked him down
and pulled the keys from his
hands. '

He went to the neighbor’s,

called the police, moved out of

the Munns’ home for a day, and
after talking with police, moved
backin. _

Tension continued to build,

‘and the two had a second con-.

frontation over some work Men-
denhall was doing on his camp-
er about five months later. Spe-
cifically, Mendenhall was using
acetone to clean his brushes
and the Munns had told him
they didn’t want the material at
their home. :
Munn said he confronted
Mendenhall outside and con-

tinued to argue with him as

Mendenhall went in the house.

Mendenhall contends their
fight went further, as Munn
wentintothe bedroomand con-

Two weeks later, Mendenhall
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tinued to verbally abuse him.
When he turned away, he said,
Kirk straddled him-on his bed
and held him, forcing him to
listen to the abuse and obsceni-
ties.

The final confrontation came
Christmas Day 1999, when Men-
denhall made. himself break-
fast. :

The Munns were surprised,

they stated, as they expected
they would all have breakfast |
together. Another argument

started. ,
The Munns said Mendenhall

" went to his room, then left

the home without telling them

" where he was going. They later

found out he had moved in

with Cynthia’s mother, Barbara

Smith, his son’s ex-wife.
Mendenhall again recalls the:

|
|
|
!

incident somewhat differently.

After forgetting it was Christ-
mas Day and making breakfast,
Mendenhall faced his grand-
son-in-law’s anger a final time.
.Kirk became irate and ordered
‘Mendenhall to move out, which
he did.

Two days later, Munn, who
stiill had power of attorney on.

‘Mendenhall's accounts, trans-
ferred $14,000 of Mendenhall’s

money into her own separate

" account. Later in the day, she
tried to empty the account,
. bank records say, and the bank

officials questioned the trans-
" fer.

signed papers taking Munn'’s
power of attorney away, and
soon began working with g law-
yer. .

Attorney Chris Jenkins filed

the civillawsuitin YavapaiCoun-

&y Superior Court March 28, |

2000.

According to the claim, the
Munns coerced Mendenhall to
SIgN over, or stole between
$621,790.52 and $647,500 in
accounts and assets. Besides al]
pf his assets, Mendenhaj] also
is asking for punitive damages
and all costs,

The Munns’ attorneys say the
claim constitutes harassment.
The defendants merely accepted
gifts they were offered and took
care of Mendenhall’s needs.

“Any ‘action taken by the

‘defendants (the Munns) with’

respect to plaintiff (Men-
denhall)  was in. good faith
and based upon legitimate and
lawful reasons,” the Munns’
response to the claim states.

Contact Gail Kenny at
gkenny@prescottaz.com



Jury to
decide
whether
pair abused
its elderly
relative
By GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier

PRESCOTT — Both prosecu-

tion and defense attorneys gave
opening statements Wednesday

inan alleged elder abuse casein |
Yavapai County Superior Court '

Division 4. - ‘

Chris Jensen, attorney for
plaintiff Ray Mendenhall, gave
the jurors an overview of how
Mendenhall's  granddaughter
and her husband, Cindy and

Kirk Munn, allegedly exploited

an incapacitated, vulnerable ‘{

senior. :

 He explained how the Munns
served in a position of trust
and confidence to Mendenhall
and his wife, Deseret, before -

she died.

But from that position of trust '

and confidence, the Munns took
advantage of Mendenhall, Jen-

sen charged, taking $753,028 in

See ABUSE, page 12A
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assets over a three-year period.
Mendenhall "left the Munn

home on Christmas Day 1999,

after numerous episodes of
physical and emotional abuse,
Jensen alleged. That's when he
began to understand the finan-
cial implications; he said.
“When he found out he didn’t
have the money, that's when
he started figuring out what
had happened,” Jensen told the
jurors.
- However, Mark Goodman,
who represents the Munns, con-
tended that Mendenhall was
neithervulnerable nor incapac-
itated throughout most of the

~ three years he lived with the

Munns in Chino Valley.
The Munns gave Mendenhall
a home and care throughout
the time he lived with them.
While something happened
inJune 1999 to change Menden-

hall'semotional and mental sta-

bility, that was after he know-
ingly made a series of voluntary
gifts to the Munns, Goodman
contended.

Those gifts included paying

off their mortgage and sev-
eral debts; joint tenancy with-

survivorship rights to vehicles,
property and banking ac-
counts; and land and build-
ings for their Grease Gun busi-
ness.

“He (Mendenhall) had access
to his money at all times and |

he knew how much he had
and where it was being spent,”
Goodman said.

The opening statements fol-
lowed a smooth morning of
juror selection.

Just 16 of the initial 75 poten-

tial jurors disqualified them-
selves for a number of health,’
employment or travel-related

reasons.

After that, the court disquali-

fied only a trio of the initial 18
jurors for various impartiality
issues.

Contact Gail Kenny at.
gkenny@prescottaz.com



Elderly plaintiff

i

says kin took

advantage of him

By GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier

PRESCOTT — The Divi-.

sion 4 courtroom of Yavapai
County  Superior = Court
resembles a judicial muse-
um. ‘ '

The spectator seats are
deep-colored
auditorium seats, complete
with wire hat racks under-
neath. The matchingwooden
jurors seats are only slightly
more comfortable. Gold-gild-
ed iron grates cover old heat
registers in the back of the
room.

The ceiling towers above
the chambers, about a full
story over the historical judg-
es’ portraits on the west wall.

wooden

And the clock over .he

entrance is permanently fro-

zen at 7:18, as if something
momentous occurred at that
time of day in the court-
room’s past. '

Raymond
came into that setting Thurs-

day to begin testifying in

his case, alleging his grand-
daughter and her husband

exploited his impaired men-

tal and physical condition to
abuse him and take more
than $750,000 of his assets.

Mendenhall, 93, seemed
to fit the settings as he
walked slowly, with a cane,
to the front of the room.

See ABUSE, page 10A

Mendenhall |
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The sound in the room, echoing
wildly - off antique-white painted
acoustical panels, didn't help the
hearing-impaired ~ Mendenhall,
whose attorney Chris Jensen
‘brought the podium close to his
client in the witness box.

Mendenhall explained why he

and his wife came to live with-

his granddaughter, Cindy Munn,
and her husband, Kirk. He said

his health problems prevented him

from giving adequate care to Deser-
et, who had a heart condition, and
from taking care of himself. ,
Another grandchild wanted to
put him in a nursing home. And
~ as a Los Angeles Water and Power
employee, he inspected the plumb-
ing in “old folks’ homes,” finding
them unsanitary and inadequate.
His sister-in-law was too old to care
for Deseret and him on top of his
‘brother Frank, who had Alzheim-
er’s. So he accepted Cindy and Kirk
Munn's offer to, come live with
them. ‘
“They were so glad to have us,
wanted to have us for life,” Men-
denhall said of the Munns.
Mendenhall needed coaching
during his testimony, both from

Jensen and Judge Raymond Weav-
er.
Later in the day, Adult Protective
Services investigator Reed Hawkes
would tell the jury that even two
years ago, Mendenhall remembered
events, but didn't always get the
sequence right.

Mendenhall said he offered to
pay for room and board, but the
Munns refused. But when they
wanted to add on to their cramped
home, but had no resources, Men-
denhall said he was willing to pay
for it.

“I wanted to make them happy,”
he said.

Keeping the peace and making
the Munns happy was a constant

theme during his testimony. He:
was uncomfortable with checking

accounts, preferring a single sav-

ings account, but acceded to his -

granddaughter’s wishes to open
account after’ account — there
would be nine in all after three
years. , ‘
He saw the money going too fast
and tried to close some accounts.
But his granddaughter refused to

-sign as a joint tenant, so he gave in

and reopened them.
Through it all, Mendenhall testi-
fied, he still viewed Cindy Munn as

the little girl who played with his
dog in Deseret’s and his backyard.

Jensen asked Mendenhall why he
didn't call the police or insist on a
resolution when more than $60,000
was missing from his safe in April
1997, just after Deseret died.

“At the time, I wasn't Ray Men-
denhall because of my wife’s death,”
he said. “I was devastated.”

He said he understood the power
of attorney differently, as some-
thing that Cindy could use after
he and Deseret died. He cannot
recall signing any papers to give
half interest in his vacation home
in Beaver, Utah, to the Munns. And
he loaned the Munns the money for
the Grease Gun auto shop and its
property, because he didn’t like to
see Cindy Munn working hard and
Kirk Munn at home.

By June 1999, everything
changed, Mendenhall said.. The
Munns found fault with everything
he did. And the abuse started,

. beginning with an alleged assault

that month.

Hawkes, from Adult Protective .
Service, said that after investigat-
ing the complaint, he closed the
case. He said he believed Menden-
hall misinterpreted Kirk Munn’s
attempt to prevent him from falling

Also Thursday, the jury heard

as an assault.

But Hawkes said he did find a
number of risk factors in the home,
from a lack of quality or consis-
tency in the care, to Kirk Munn’s
constant access to Mendenhall.

He did find that Mendenhall
exhibited signs of impairment, but
not enough to support abuse,
neglect or exploitation, although
he didn’t investigate any financial
allegations. He advised the Munns
to seek out supportive services and
not let the daily burden of care
overwhelm them.

from Pat Huntsman, Chino Valley
police chief, who talked about two
police reports and her confidential
conversation with Cindy Munn
after Mendenhall discovered the
money was missing from his safe.

And they listened to neighbor
Tracy Meyer tell about the day in
June 1999 when.Mendenhall came
to her home to have her call the
police to report Kirk Munn’s alleged
assault.

Mendenhall will finish testify-
ing in his side of the case today.

Contact Gail Kenny at
gkenny@prescottaz.com



Mendenhall

completes
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his story in
abuse case
By GAILKENNY
The Daily Courier
~PRESCOTT — Ray Men-
denhall finished his testimo-
ny Friday in his part of the

alleged elder abuse civil case

~
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- Mendenhall, 93, is suing his
granddaughter, Cindy Munn,
and her husband, Kirk, on
allegations that they exploit-
ed and abused him, usihg
most of his retirement sav--
ings for personal and: busi-
ness advantages. s
- The Munns contend they
paid for his room and board

See ELDER, page 104
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for three years, along with the costs
of personal trips.

On Friday, Mendenhall told the
jury that on Christmas Day 1999, he
got up and made his own breakfast.
That angered the Munns, he said,
and he retreated to his trailer.

Kirk Munn followed him to the
trailer and ordered him to “get the

hell out of there and get in my car

-and never come back.” That’s when
he left. He didn't just move .out for
no reason, as the defendants claim,
he said. -

In June 1999, when Mendenhall

alleged Kirk Munn had assaulted

him, he left the home and stayed
with his ex-daughter-in-law Barbara
Smith for a day. At the time, she had
given him a key and told him to use
it if he ever needed it. v

But on Christmas he went to a

café in Chino Valley to think things .

out. Finding the place closed for the
holiday, he sat in his car outside the
restaurant for a long time, thinking
about his options. - .

He thought about other relatives’
homes. He considered just going to
stay in a motel. Then he remem-
bered the key, and decided to go
there for a time and rnake a long-
term plan. .

Since Smith was in California
for Christmas, he stopped in at

one of her neighbors and let them

know he had a key, he said, just so

they wouldn't be concerned. Smith -

arrived home that night.
In the next few weeks, Menden-

“hall said Smith nursed him back

to hedlth. The tension, lack of regu-
lar meals and other factors left him
weak, even fainting several times.
Mendenhall countered the defen-
dant’s claims about their contribu-
tions. He paid for motels, food and
gas on trips. He bought dinners and
new furniture for the home. As for
room and board, his offers to help

were constantly denied, he said.

He told the jury he couldn't
remember how much money went
into the home remodel or a car pur-
chase. .

He said he thought he had two
accounts, when his attorney Chris

Jensen told the jury during the open-

ing statement that they would find
nine accounts connected to this
case. :

And when Jensen said the defense
will suggest he drew out more than
$100,000 in June 1999 from the col-
lege fund he set up for the Munns’
daughters, Mendenhall was indig-
nant. .

“Me drawing that out? No sir!” he
replied. ' ’
Afterward, Kim Savory testified.

Savory was a friend of the Munns

who stayed and helped around the
home in April 1997, after Ray Men-
denhall’s wife, Deseret, died.

Savory took Mendenhall shopping -
for flowers, new shoes and other
things he needed for the funeral.
Defense attorney Mark Goodman
led her through those shopping trips
receipt by receipt on his cross-exam-
ination. o

She cleaned- the house, including
Mendenhall’'s room, but claimed she
didn't know about a safe — until
some time that week when Menden-
hall screamed from his room that

‘money was missing.

About $60,000 in cash had been
in a safe under his bed. She claimed
she helped him check the safe for a
false bottom, then look around the
bedroom. Her boyfriend, Judge Roy
Abbott came to pick her up, and she
told him.

Abbott told Munn about the miss:
ing money when she arrived home
soon after. When directly asked,

-Savory, who had a couple of bad

check convictions years earlier, said

- she had not been in the safe earlier, |

nor did she take any money.

The trial continues in Yavapai -
County Superior Court Division 4
Tuesday.

Contact Gail

7 Kenny  at
gkenny@prescottaz.com '
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testimony in abuse case

case, and what money trans-

By GAIL KENNY
"The Daily Courier
PRESCOTT — The theme for
Tuesday’s continuing testimony
inthe Mendenhallvs. Munn civil
elder abuse'trial could have been
“Show me the money.”
For hours, plaintiff Ray
Mendenhall's attorney Chris Jen-
- sen walked co-defendant Cindy

“Munn through her Quickbook -

software printouts, talkingabout
balances in nine accounts in the

Daily Courier

‘ferred between the accounts.
That followed continuing tes-
timony by Maria Ross, a Bank
One official who formerly man-
aged the Chino Valley branch.
Ross talked about Menden-
hall's banking practices, and
Mendenhall’s and Munn’s bank
_records. Ross told the jury that
eVe‘ry month, Mendenhall came

See ELDER, page 11A
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into BankOne and made depos-
its from his pension and Social
Security checks. He would keep
part of his checks in cash.
Mendenhall, who is now 93,
~usually camé intc the bank
alone, Ross said. But like clock-
work, bank officials would help
him with his deposit slip, asking
him how much he wanted in the
account, how much he wanted
in cash. ‘ ,
In December 1998, Menden-
hall asked to close a checking
account. Ross said Mendenhall
told her “he was having prob-
lems at home-and he wanted to
be a sole owner on his account.”
Ross said to be the sole owner,

Mendenhall would have to get

Cindv Munn to sign a form,
agreeing to that. The account
- remained a joint account, Ross
said.

Later in the day, when Munn

testified, she said Mendenhall-

never asked her to sign the
form. _ '

Kirk and Cindy Munn’s attor-
-ney, Mark Goodman, asked Ross
if Mendenhall could get infor-
mation while he was in the bank
about his accounts. Ross said he
could. '

Then, on Dec. 27, 1999, two
days after Mendenhall left the
Munns’ home, Ross described

two more banking transactions. |

By on-line transfer, the kind

-someone with-a home comput- |

er could process, $14,000 left
one joint account of Munn and
Mendenhallfora separate Munn
account, Rosssaid.

Later in the day, a second
transaction  occurred  from
another  Mendenhall/Munn

account. The bank reversed this

one, Ross said, because the
$4,300 amount would have over-
drawn the account. ‘
Munn began testifying about
their agreement to allow the
Mendenhalls to live with them.
The Mendenhalls, Ray and
his wife Deseret, who died in
April 1997, came to live with the
Munns in Chino Valley in late
December 1997. :
Within - weeks, Munn
explained, she and her husband
Kirk had signed a contract with
contractor Tim Eikens to expand
the home with two more bed-
rooms, a bathroom and a garage
ro replace the existing one they
were remodeling into a great
room. :
Mendenhall agreed to pay for
the addition, Munn said. The
contract, for more than $46,000,
stated that the remodel would
expand the - 1,936-square-foot
home by 1,360 square feet - a
63 percent increase. Munn dis-
puted those figures.

Shealso disputed that Ray and
Deseret Mendenhall, married 60
years, always shared a bedroom,
since she said the addition was
for separate bedrooms for her
grandparents. ,

Munn said they never made
written promissory notes about

the remodel, about the money -

for paying off their mortgage,
or for the purchase of land or
building for the Grease Gun. She
said she never talked to attor-
neys about setting up such doc-
uments.

After going through a lengthy

accounting of money into the .

nine accounts during the three

accounts, Jensen noted that the

-years, and transfers between the

netexpenditures after takingout
the transfers were more than :

$586,000. ;
Late in the day, Jensen halted

Munn's testimony to let expert

witness William C. Wennerholm

testify. ’
Wennerholm, & psychothera-
pist with certifications in social

Wednesday, April 25, 2001 » 11A

with Mendenhall that virtually
mirrored Mendenhall’s. earlier
testimony.

He said he believes that Men-
denhall suffered from isolation,
evenwithin the family. He didn’t

- turn to anyone after his ‘wife’s

death, and became more and
more depressed. The family

situation became increasingly'

stressful until he decided to
leave.

“I think the most devastating

thing to him was that he felt
abandoned by Cynthia Munn,”

Wennerholm said.

He said he diagnosed Men-
denhall with severe depression
and a post-traumatic stress dis-
order. Today, Goodman will
cross-examine  Wennerholm,

‘and Munn’s testimony will

resume in Yavapai County Supe-
rior Court Division 4.

Contact Gail Kenny at
glkenny@prescottaz.com

- work, related his conversations



Elder abuse case still
focuses on money

By GAIL KENNY

The Daily Courier

- PRESCOTT — Like a build-
er laying a foundation, Ray-
mond Mendenhall's attorney
brought in two expert wit-
nesses Wednesday to cement
the foundation of the financial
claims he made in his open-
ing statements in the alleged
elder abuse case a week ear-
lier.

PamelaJohnston, a cer,t.ified.

private fiduciary, and Anne
King, an accountant, talked
about the reviews they made
of the practices and finances
~ throughout the time that Ray-

mond Mendenhall, now 93,
lived with his granddaughter,
Cindy Munn and her husband,
Kirk, in Chino Valley from
1997 1o 1999.

Johnston, who also has
experience in the legal and
banking fields, said most of
her career ‘experience has
involved working with seniors,
first as a probate paralegal
and then as a probate special-
ist in a bank’s trust depart-

‘ment.

Johnston said a fiduciary

takes the responsibility for

WS
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another’s affairs. In her posi-

tion as a private fiduciary,

certified by the Arizona
Supreme Court, she serves as
acourt-appointed conservator
In some cases, at the request
of family or others.

~ After reviewing the com-
plaint, answer, depositions,
other case material and inter-
viewing Mendenhall, Johnston
said she concluded that the
Munns overstepped in several
ways the fiduciary responsi-
bilities they assumed.

For example, she said the
Munns mixed Mendenhall’s
finances with theirs in a prac-
rice known as co-mingling
accounts, something the law
forbids her to do as a certified
private fiduciary, she said:

In addition, she said the"

Munns’ claim that Menden-
hall owes them more than
$600 a month for room and
board in a house in which he
paid for remodeling expenses
Aappears excessive. She also
questioned three years of
care-giving costs at $6 per

hour for 12 hours per day that
the Munns claim in set-off
costs.

‘In cross-examination, the
Munns’ attorney, Mark Good-
man, asked Johnston if she
was aware of the level of care
they provided, or what servic-
es

She responded that she

believed she had a pretty clear
picture from the depositions
and interviews with Menden-
hall.

He asked if she was aware
of any special training the
Munns received for their fidu-
ciary duties.

‘I don’t think it requires
someone to be a certified pri-
vate fiduciary to understand
the importance of - keeping
records,” Johnston said.

Later in the day, King, an
accountant, said she reviewed
financial records, tax returns
and depositions to account
for the nine separate accounts
and the Mendenhall and
Munn finances from 1997 to
1999.

Out of that information, she
was able to draw conclusions

5y 0

about the two parties’ starting
finances, their incomes dur-
ing the three years, and their
final assets.

Her conclusions reflected
Jensen’s opening statement
last week, that Mendenhall
had approximately $700,000 in
assets when he moved into the
Munn home and $140,000 in
income over the three years,
but less than $86,000 in assets
as of Dec. 31, 1999. »

Meanwhile, she testified,
the Munns had about $23,000
in assets when Mendenhall
moved in at the start of 1997,
income of about $134,000 over
the three years, and approxi-
mately $510,000 in assets on
Dec. 31, 1999. '

Contact Gail Kenny at
gkenny@prescottaz.com



Judge allows lder

few 1tems

* For the most paxt Weavel,
~ denied defense claims that the
_ plaintiff failed to make a case
during the- first half of the .
;'f Mendenimll vs. Munn smt m: :

‘ney Mqu Goodmms monon‘ﬂ‘
.to ‘remove the mortgage pay- |
“ment from the claims against
‘the Munns Mendenhall ada— -
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mantly testified, and Cindy Munn agreed, that
the mortgage payment was a gift. '

Weaver removed Kirk Munn from the claim
that both Munns were de facto conservators. No
evidence showed that he handled the various

bark accounts and transactions, Weaver said.

Weaver denied Goodman's other mid-trial

motions.

During testimony Friday, Bill Hobbs, an inves-

seen photos of Mendenhall’s bruised arms after
a June 1999 episode between Kirk Munn and
Mendenhall.

And he said he wasn't aware that the Munns’
home mortgage balloon payment was due one
week after Mendenhall paid it off.

He responded to Mendenhall’s attorney, Chris

Jensen, that if Mendenhall feared losing the

-home in which he was living, and that caused

him to pay off the mortgage, it possibly was
coercion.
Hobbs said the Yavapai County Attomeys

tigator for the Yavapai County
Attorney’s Office, said Men-
denhall visited him on Feb. 2,
2000, claiming that the Munns
* hac financially exploited and ;\'? :
physically abused him.
Hobbs said Mendenhall
admitted he knew Cindy
Munn was using some of his ;f, ’
money. He vaguely remem-
bered some things, but Hobbs
believed he authorized or
-allowed the use of his money.
After getting Mendenhall's
story, Hobbs investigated the
. allegations. He looked into the
Chino Valley police records

and talked to someone from . participating in flshmg and
Adult Protective Services. hunting trips.

He talked to Kirk MUnn two ssessssesssasmmmmm—m— The Howards are ciose
days later. The conversation, friends, more like family,
early on Feb. 4, 2000, in the Munns’ dI‘]Very, Mary Howard said. Doug Howard is the man-
didn’t last long, Hobbs recalled. The Munns ager of Kirk Munn’s business, The Grease Gun
were upset over the allegations and had decided  in Chino Valley.
to retain an attorney. Both testified that they saw Kirk as a caring,

On cross-examination, Hobbs said he didn’t = respectful companion for Mendenhall. They
know if Mendenhall knew how much of his never witnessed abuse or saw the Munns trying
money the Munns used. He said he had not to isolate or deprive him.

Office investigation still is
_ open, pending this civil
~ case. However, he is not the

: 1nvest1gator now. |

- Other witnesses Friday

; mcluded Jill Chavez, a neigh-

' bor at the Beaver, Utah,
vacation home, and friends
- of the Munns, Doug and
Mary Howard and Frank and
Ianel Dellara.

Doug and Mary Howard
each testified that the Vg
ited the Munn

f physm;q nd “times over the years, often
b coming over day after day,
. monetary qbuse

~at unannounced times, and

~ -Doug Howard frie
of‘ (

jefendants Klrk: _y '




“What Grandpa (Mendenhall) wanted, he
got,” Doug Howard said.

But when Mary Howard repeated nearly that
identical phrase later in the day, the words that
Goodman spoke over and over during his open-
ing statement, jurors and others raised their
eyebrows. :

Jensen asked Mary Howard about it on cross-
examination,. and she said it was ‘her own
thought. And on redirect, Goodman confirmed
with her that he hadn't rehearsed her for testi-
mony earlier. .

Frank and Janel Dellara testified that they
knew the Munns, and had, on occasion, had
Cindy Munn notarize documents. On one occa-
sion, the Dellaras- witnessed some documents
that Mendenhall signed.

Frank Dellara said he hardly remembered
the occasion, but Janel Dellara said she remem-
bered and Mendenhall seemed to be alert and
aware of the signing. o

And Jill Chavez, who lives next door to the

-Beaver, Utah, vacation home Mendenhall owned
and now co-owns with Cindy Munn, said she saw

“Mendenhall’s wifes«Deseret, physically decline

_over the yea o »

~ The decline wasn't nearly so marked with
Mendenhall, except mentally from 1998 t6 1999,
she said.

She recalls Mendenhall talking about want-
ing to give the vacation home to the Munns. She
also described the work that Kirk Munn did on
the house on working/vacation trips there with
Mendenhall. .

~The trial resumes Wednesday in Yavapai
County Superior Court Division 4.

Contact Gail Kenny at
gkenny@prescottaz.com.



Mendenhail vs Murm . o
Plaintiff rests in
elder abuse trial

By GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier

PRESCOTT — The plaintiff’s side
rested its case Thursday .after a
full day of testimony during the tri-
al’s sixth day in Ray Mendenhall’s
alleged elder abuse case in Yavapai
- County Superior Court.

The 93-year-old Chino Valley
man, with his attorney, Chris Jen-
sen, charges that his granddaugh-
ter, Cindy Munn, and her husband,
Kirk, took advantage of a vul-
nerable, elderly man, abused him
and converted the majority of his

assets.

This morning, Judge Raymond
Weaver will face a number of
motions from the defense, alleging
that the plaintiff’s witnesses failed
to prove their side’s claims during

- their portion of the trial.

In Thursday’s testimony, Dr. Vir-
ginia: Conners, a neuropsycholo-
gist, talked about her examination
of Mendenhall in January 2001.

Conners examined Mendenhall
for five hours, giving him a battery

See TRIAL, page 17A
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of psychological tests.

In some areas, he func-
tioned at a below-average
range. In others he performed
at or below 1 percent, a severe-
ly impaired score.

She determined that while
his immediate working mem-
" ory is intact, allowing him to
carry on a conversation, his
frontal lobe functions are neg-
atively affected, impairing his
reasoning skills and memory.
She determined that the cul-

prit is a neuro-degenerative
disorder: most likely Alzheim-

er’s disease or arelated frontal-

temporal lobe degeneration.
“There is something going

onin the brain that is compro-

mising brain function,” Con-

ners said.

Based on the tests, Conners
said, this isn't just advanced
age. Publishers norm the tests
for 92- to 97-year-old people,
and Mendenhalil scores signif-
icantly below the norm. And ‘
she told Jensen she didn't
believe that Mendenhall could
have been purposely falsify-

A ARIELARJ
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call, it wouldh’t be surprising

to her. Often, people who see
a senior patient — family or
even doctors —don't recognize
the person’s actual reasoning
deficits.

Goodman showed Conners
portions of Mendenhall’s
taped depositions in August
and September 2000. Conners
agreed that it took cognitive
function to make those deci-
sions that Goodman picked
out. _

However, on redirect ques-
tioning, Jensen asked whether

o o ]
200

Goodman also ascertained
that Conners had not spoken
to the Munns or their friends
or neighbors, or looked over

other reports in drawing her
conclusions.

Goodman asked if Conners

‘knew that Mendenhall's reg-

ular physician doesn’t agree
that he is impaired.

Conners said that even
though Mendenhall’s primary
care doctor dldnt make that

See TRIAL, page 18A
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call, it wouldn't be surprising
to her. Often, people who see
a senior patient — family or
even doctors —don’t recognize
the person’s actual reasoning
deficits. )
Goodman showed Conners
portions of Mendenhall’s
taped depositions in August
and September 2000. Conners
agreed that it took cognitive
function to make those deci-
sions that Goodman picked
out. 3 -
However, on redirect ques-
tioning, Jensen asked whether
people with neuropsvchologi-

cal disorders have cognitive
function. She said they do,
and agreed thatjust because a
person thought through some-
thing, it doesn't mean he
wasn't impaired. . ‘

Earlier in the day, Goodman
cross-examined Anne King, an
accountant and Internal Rev-
enue Service enrolled agent.

Goodman- walked King
through a listing of expenses,
then asked some questions of
accounting practices.

After  Goodman  asked
whether a typical person
would be able to account for all
money in NUmMerous accounts
over a three-year period, King

told him that if a person has
assumed this duty, it's a trust.

On redirect to Jensen, she
made an even stronger state-
ment about a person who has
assumed the care and finan-
cial trust for an elder relative,
such as Cindy Munn did for
Mendenhall. '

“I would expect the job to
be impeccable,” she said. “I
would expect it to be better

than one would do for one’s
self.”

Contact Gail Kenny at
gkenny@prescottaz.com.
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Elder abuse mal nears end

By GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier '

PRESCOTT — Chino Valley resident Cindy
Munn finished her testimony Thursday after

nearly two days on the stand in Yavapai Coun-

ty Superior Court.
Munnandher husband, Kirk, stand accused
- of elder abuse and conversion of retirement
money and other assets from her grandfather,
Ray Mendenhall, in the civil case.
Mendenhall, 93, lived with the Munns from
late December 1996 to Christmas Day 1999. In
between, Mendenhall claims, the couple took
~ advantage of his vulnerable state, reducing
his assets of more than $700,000 to less than

$100,000. ‘
* On Wednesday, Munn told defense attor-

ney Mark Goodman that she never has served
as an accountant or professional bookkeeper
neither at a funeral home in California nor in
the Chino Valley Municipal Court.

- Thursday, however, when asked about her

title with the funeral home, she responded
that she was accounts receivable and accounts

payable manager. .

“Anaccountant?” Jensen questloned Munn

responded that she was a manager, not an

accountant.

(”(,
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Wednesday, Goodman asked
her ab_ou:t the accounts named
in the case — nine in all. Six

of them, she said, were Menden-

hall’s, or joint accounts. Three of
them were Munn accoumnts, she
said.

Munn demed that she ever
used any of Mendenhall's money

without his permission. - The -
in the

money was mixed
accounts, she agreed, but that
was because her grandfather
wanted it to benefit all of them.
Goodman asked her what her
grandfather said about that.
“That it was all in one pot,”
Munn said. “We were family.”
Goodman showed a variety
of photos throughout the three
years, -demonstrating Menden-

. hall celebrating occasions from

early 1997 to late 1999. He asked
Munn when he became unhap-
py. Not during the time he was
with the Munns, she said.
“He’s unhappy now,” she said.
Thursday, Jensen challenged
that Munn and her husband

"never could have afforded the

improvements they made, or
their lifestyle of multiple cars and
boats, alargehome addition, spas

'andv pools, a newly constructed

business, and vacations, if Men-
denhall hadn’t come to live with
them.

“Yes, I could agree with that,”

she said. “Grandpa was with us,

“and he wanted us to be happy.”

Time reared its head in the
case both days, both in attor-
neys’ attempts to nail down actu-
al dates of events and for the trial

schedule. On Thursday, the attor-
neys each took a shot at trying to
frame an incident that involved
Mendenhall’s use of acetone. In
a delayed police report, Men-
denhall said he believed he was
using acetone to fix his camper
on Christmas Eve Day 2000 when
Kirk Munn verbally abused, then
assaulted him.

Cindy Munn, who denied her
husband’s wrongdoing, had
reported buying - disposable
brushes for her grandfather as |
early as mid-November 2000. She
said she believes her husband
confronted her grandfather over
the acetone a day or so after
Thanksgiving.

Jensen said that Kirk Munn
stated in his deposition that he
was hanging Christmas lights at
the time. Could it have been the
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alleged elder-abuse case

By GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier

PRESCOTT — The defense rested Fri-
day in an alleged elder abuse case in
Yavapai County Superior Court. ~

After a lengthy examination of defen-
dant Kirk Munn by both his attorney
Mark Goodman and plaintiff's attorney
Chris Jensen, the testimony in the case
finished on the trial’s 10th day.

Tuesday, Judge Raymond Weaver will

meet with the attorneys to preparé final

juror instructions, which he will hand
out Tuesday afternoon. The jurors should
begin deliberations-late Tuesday after-
noon and continue Wednesday.

Kirk Munn told jurors he met Ray
Mendenhall,  his wife’s grandfather,

-when he and Cindy still were in high

school. However, they didn’t do much

See ELDER, page 10A
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with Ray Mendenhall and his wife, Deseret, until
the seniors called them in the fall of 1996 and
asked for their help.

Kirk said he went to southern Ca.hfornla’to
find the Mendenhalls struggling. They didn’t
have a working car. They had very little food in
their home, had dirty sheets on their beds and
needed baths.

Goodman focused Kirk Munn's testimony on
his efforts as a caretaker. Munn was always pres-
ent at Méndenhall’s side, he testified, providing
an arm for Mendenhall, now 93, to brace himself
with. ‘

It was in that same spirit, Munn said, that he
tried to catch Mendenhall in July 1999, when he
fell in the yard. '

Munn had asked for Mendenhall’s keys to re-
park his car after he left it partially in the road,
Munn said.

Munn said Mendenhall became agitated,
throwing his arms in the air and losing his bal-
ance. He grabbed for the elderly man, and both
went down.

That was the day afrer the famlly came home
and found their skunk-sprayed dog had been in
the house during their trip to Lake Havasu.

The next day, the Munns became concerned
about Mendenhall when he took off; walking.
Later they would find that Mendenhall went to
a neighbor’s to have her call the police to report
the incident as an assault.
~ Munn agreed with his wife that they needed to
look into her grandfather’s mental health. They

contacted his doctor and a number of agencies
for help.

Jensen used this episode on cross-examina-
tion to try to show the jury the plaintiff’s claim
that the Munns controlled Mendenhall’s move-
ments. Why was it an issue that Mendenhall was
walking down the street, he asked Munn.

Munn said his grandfather never walked any-
where. His. older daughter woke him with that

information that Mendenhall was walking down

- Palomino Road.

“My daughter was almost in tears,” he said.
“He (Mendenhall) had never done that.”

Jensen asked him about his businesses and
their financial viability. He had an auto uphol-
stery business that closed in Southern California.
He also closed the-doors of an auto repair busi-
ness but continued to operate it from his vehicle.

Asked about the financial soundness of the
Grease Gun, the lube and repair business that
the plaintiff alleges Munn built with his money,
Kirk Munn' told Jensen he would have to ask
questions about its profits to his accountant, that
he didn’t know that information. '

Jensen also asked about the Munns’ debts in
1997, and Kirk Munn's gambling habit.

Munn said when Cindy’s grandmother died in
April 1997, he knew about two judgments, but
not two tax liens against the couple for his failure
to pay sales tax for Munn'’s Automotive.

Munn left Chino Valley on April 5, 1997, when
he learned the hospital was sending Deseret
Mendenhall home, home to die, she said. Munn
— who never took off on his wife like that previ-
ously — arrived back home a week later, after his -
wife's grandmother’s funeral. -

Jensen asked him his whereabouts during that
time. Munn said planned to go to his parent’s
home, south of Reno, Nev. But he didn't make

. it'that far — taking a one-way plane tnp to Las

Vegas.

Munn said he paid cash for the entire trip.
Jensen asked him if that was the cash from
Mendenhall’s safe, about $60,000 that turned up

missing during Munn’s absence that week.
Munn denied taking the money or trying to

arrange a cover-up by not calling the police
about the theft. ,

“I had some money,” he said, explaining how
he paid for the week in Las Vegas. “I worked on
people’s cars.”

Contact Gail Kenny at gkenny@prescottaz.com



Elder abuse trial drags
on; jury has the case

3y GAIL KENNY
The Daily Courier

PRESCOTT — By the 12th
lay ‘of a scheduled 10-day
alleged elder abuse trial, civility
was wearing thin as attorneys.
irgued . their final points and
{avapai County Superior Court
Division 4 staff prepared jury
‘nstructions and verdict forms.

After more objections to a
proposed 36th jury instruction
from attorneys Chris Jensen and
Maik Goodman, Judge Ray-

mond Weaver told the pair how.

he was going to word it, “and
that’s final.” ;

More than an hour later, the
jury filed in for closing argu-
ments in the case. As they set-
Jled on an array of seat cush-
ions, the nine of them also
seemed worn down, after attor-
1eys wrangled the entire day
Tuesday over words, and the
Jjury went home without hear-
ing any of the promised closing
arguments.

Wednesday, the lawyers chal-

Jenged the j jurytoread carefully

the evidence most favorable to
their respective sides as they
started deliberations. ’
Jensen, who represents plain-
tiff Ray Mendenhall, told the

jury this case is about greed |

and a betrayal of trust. :
“Follow the trail of money,”
he said. “It tells you everythmg
you need to know in this case.”
Jensen told the jury he proved
that the Munns started with
nearly nothing — except the

opportunity they saw when the |

Mendenhalls moved in.

Within days, they were build-
ing onto their Chino Valley
home, -opening joint accounts
and laying a foundation that
would continue for three years.

He pulled out networth state-
ments for both Mendenhall and

.the Munns both before and
after Mendenhall live_d with the

See ELDER ABUSE, page 12A
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Munns.
He showed the sheet of trans-

actions with a portion of Men-

denhall’s money, showing how
it filtered through account after
account.

Those transactions were dif-

ficult enough for Munn to fol-

low, he said, but almost i impos-
sible for Mendenhall, a vulner-
able adult suffering from a neu-
ro-degenerative disorder that
affected his ability to reason

and see the long-range picture. -

* He asked 'the jury to consid-

er not only monetary damages,

but also triple punitive dam-
ages. : :

- “That will punish the Munns
and send a message to the com-
munity that this sort of thing
is not going to be tolerated,”
Jensen said.

But the Munns’ attorney,

Mark Goodman, saw things dif-

ferently, calling it a case of an
angry man who changed his
mind about gifts to his grand-
daughter and her family.

“He’s angry, and that’s why'

we're here,” he said. “That’s one

of the reasons why we're here.”
Goodman said Jensen failed

to prove anything, and instead

is relying on theories and accu-
sations, not facts.

Theories, like his - theory
about the Munns using multi-
ple checking accounts. Accusa-
tions, like his implication that
Kirk Munn stole money from
Mendenhall’s safe.

Mendenhall himself said he’s

not accusing the Munns of
doing anything wrong the first
18 months.
" That period encompasses
most of what the jury will have
to decide: accounts, the remod-
el, the theft-of money, the deed
for the Utah vacation home, the
college fund, the land for the
Grease Gun business, pay-off of
judgments and more.

And the defense will concede

that the Munns have more now
than when Mendenhall moved
in. Mendenhall wanted it that
way, he said. Goodman said
Mendenhall wanted to see the
Munns happy, and benefiting
from his gifts whlle he was
alive. .

The jury began deliberating
late Wednesday afternoon, and
will  continue deliberations
today.

Contact Gail Kenny at
gkennyOprescofmz com
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By GAIL KENNY
Thie Daily Courier - :
PRESCOTT — The courthouse chimes

‘kpea’led 4 o'clock Thursday as the jury
filed into the Yavapai County Superior

Court Division 4 courtroom with its ver-
dict. B o ‘

Almost exactly 24 hours after the jury
began deliberations, it returned a verdict
infavor 0f93-year-old plaintiff Ray Men-
denhall on a civil claim of elder abuse
by financial exploitation, and awarded
Mendenhall $400,000.

The amount nearly mirrors the assets

R ‘ G e ,/4 200/
ry awards $400k "
elder abuse case

that plaintiffattorney Chris Jensen dem-
onstrated that Cindy and Kirk Munn
benefited from Mendenhall’s three-year
stay with them, minus their mortgage
payoft.

The court determined early in the
trial that Mendenhall adamantly stated
that payoff was a gift to his granddaugh-
ter and her family.

The jury also decided for the plaintiff
on his claim of conversion — wrongful
control of property, but didn’t award any

See ELDER, page 17A
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money, apparently gr()uping. its éntire_

" award under the elder abuse claim.
Jurors denied the second claim of elder
abuse, that the Munns endangered or
‘injured Mendenhall’s health by neglect,
abuse or exploitation, or failed to report
these issues. They similarly denied that
the Munns intentionally inflicted emo-
tional distress, and failed to support
- Mendenhall’s claim . of assault and bat-
tery. B
The jury denied the Munns’ claims
of recoupment and set-off for their care
and travel on behalf of Mendenhall for
three years, from 1997 to 1999,

Munns, had the court poll the jurors
on the verdicts, Judge Raymond Weaver
thanked the nine people who made up
the jury and excused them after 13 days
of trial and deliberation.

. After the verdicts, Mendenhall’s attor- *

ney Jensen had to repeat and explain the
jury’s decisions to Mendenhall, who has
a severe hearing loss. o
Meanwhile, the Munns were smiling
and laughing, and Cindy Munn hugged
Goodman. , o
After the jury left, Goodman asked the
judge torelease the injunctions the court

-imposed on the vacation home in Beaver,

Utah, the Munns’ Lake Havasu property
and the Gr‘easek Gun auto repair business
in Chino Valley. - T
Jensen argued that these properties
will be the only opportunities for Men-
denhall to ‘recover the $400,000 jury

: - award. ‘
- After Mark Goodman, attorney for the -

He said he would be asking the court
to create a constructive trust so Men-
denhall could collect the judgment at
his advanced age, so the court should
maintain the legal control over these
properties.

Weaveragreed with Jensen’s argument
and denied Goodman’s motion. '

Goodman and the Munns refused to
comment after the trial.

However, “the " plaintiffs welcomed
questions. Jensen called this case an
important step in educating the public
about elder abuse laws. ,

“It seems that there is a reluctance on
the part of the police, physicians, bank-
ers and others to fully enforce the elder
abuse laws,” Jensen said. _

Overall, the jury was very. responsive .
to their presentation of elder abuse by
family members.

“We're very pleased with the verdict,
because it awards all the money that we
could hope to collect from the Munns,”

he said.

“We're disappointed that the jury
chose not to award three times the dam-
ages -as the elder abuse laws permit,
in order to punish the wrongdoer, even
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those the Munns would not have been
able to pay any more than the $400, ()00
that was awarded.” ;

Mendenhall said he’s pleased, but he
would have liked to see the ]ury award -
punitive damages. ‘

“They needed to be made an example
of,” Mendenhall said. “During the whole
time I lived there, I tried to be a gentle-
man, to treat those people like a gen-
tleman and a lady and their girls with
respect.”

However, he said he didn’t reahze fully
until late 1999 and after he left their
home on Christmas Day 1999 how they
exploited him.

“I was putting it in the front of the
bank, and they were taking it out the
back,” he said, as he slowly walked out of
the courthouse.

Contact Gail Kenny at
gkenny@prescottaz.com



